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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGHNAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
Situated on a high promontory overlooking the town of Christiansburg, the
Christiansburg Industrial Institute consists of three buildings significant in the
earliest history of the institution. These include the Hill School (1885), the Schaeffer
Memorial Baptist Church (1885), and the Primary Annex (1888).

Schaeffer Memorial Baptist Church and the Primary Annex
Built in a vernacular interpretation of Victorian Gothic, the Schaeffer Memorial
Baptist Church is a brick, seven-course-American-bond, gable-roof structure with a
projecting southeast corner tower. The .tower consists of four stages. The first contains
a central double-door entrance capped by a Gothic transom and framed by a projecting brick
arch. The corners of the tower are framed by brick buttresses which terminate at a
wooden cormice. The second stage contains an elongated triple-hung sash window capped by
a raised-brick arch and divided in the middle by a plain wooden panel. A border of
colored square lights frames panes of clear glass. The third stage consists of a wood-
frame belfry with louvres. Finally, the fourth stage contains a pyramidal shingled roof
with small dormers, .

The main body of the church is located to the west of the tower and contains a
buttressed, projecting gabled entry. This entrance is marked by double doors surmounted
by a Gothic-inspired, stained-glass transom. A round stained-glass window containing a
Star of David is located above the entry on the second story. The wall surface around
the window and entry is raised, accentuating the architectural elements. The western bay
contains a multi-paned window with a border of colered square lights. The second story
contains a multi-paned arched window with border panes of colored glass.

The east and west elevations consist of four bays. The fenestration on the first
story consists of multi-paned, hung-sash windows, each with a border of colored square
lights. Fach of the second-story windows consists of a multi-paned, arched window of
hung sash, with a border of clear and colored square lights. The north or rear elevation
contains a raised wall plane, flanked on both sides in the first story by a transom-
light doorway. A circular stained-glass window similar to that found on the south
elevation lights the second story and is flanked by a pair of multi-paned, hung-sash
windows with borders of clear and square lights, .

The interior plan of the church consists of a church hall on the first floor and
the church sanctuary and nave on the second floor. Thesanctuary preserves the original
church furnishings and pulpit, and the original pews are still in use.

Connected to the church by a covered passageway is a wood-frame, tent-roof octagon,
known as the Primary Annex. Simply finished in the interior, the annex contains striking.
examples of Victorian stained-glass windows, including a memorial window in honor of
Ada A. Schaeffer, the wife of Captain Schaeffer, the founder of the institute, which

graces the chancel,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Lo Lox . I P B T T 1 B TR
.+, The Christiansburg Industrial Institute -and the Schaeffer Memorial Baptist Church
. are monuments in the social, educational, and religious history of the black community
of southwestern Virginia. . Through the early efforts of Captain Charles S. Schaeffer,
the founder of the institute, the blacks of Montgomery County were able to receive
educational and technical skills. It is from this instruction provided at the school
and encouraged by the Memorial Baptist Church that the Christiansburg black population
has contributed significantly to the ranks of leadership in Montgomery County.

The history of the Christiansburg Industrial Institute began in 1866 when a Freedmen's: ’
Bureau school first opened in Montgomery County. During the Reconstruction period,
separate schools for blacks and whites were established in the Christiansburg area, as
elsewhere. Founded by Captain Charles S. Schaeffer, a Freedmen's Bureau” agent, the
private school for primary-aged Negroes was established five years before the public
school system became a reality. Both academic and religious training were emphasized

during most of Schaeffer's thirty-year affiliation. . .
ﬁgt long after organizing a)L ass for the freedmen in 1866, Captain

Schaeffer, later an ordained Baptist minister, formally opened the Christiansburg
African Baptist Church, This meeting house was used jointly for church and school

purposes.  The Sunday School enrollment exceeded the day-school membership, with some
teachers also teaching Bible classes at night. The combination frame structure built in |
1867 served as an elementary schoolhouse, with black Baptistsusing it for a meeting house
on nights and weekends. 1In 1869 an addition was bullt to acconmodate rapid growth. By
this time students were attending the school from long distances, having arranged board
"in the poor cabins of the neighborhood" or at Captain Schaeffer's home.

In 1873 Schaeffer supervised the building of the "first house for Normal school
purposes.'" The large, two-story structure was paid for through Quaker aid, with four
teachers added to the faculty. By 1885 the structure was outgrown, and a new two~and-one- |
half-story schoolhouse, the Hill School, was built simultaneously with the Memorial ‘
Church. An annex was added to the complex in 1888,

The Friends' Freedmen's Association, a Philalephia-based organization of the Society .|
of Friends, supported the school in Christiansburg throughout its existence., In 1895
Booker T, Washington was convinced by the Society of Friends to take over the supervision !
of the school, resulting in a much-expandéd curriculum, The Institute modeled its program :
on those pioneered at Tuskegee and Hampton. Limited space for boarding students along
with the new program necessitated the acquisition of a new campus for high school training.|
The older students were transferred to a ninety-eight-acre farm complex in 1902. Until
1953 the Hill School remained the Preparatory Industrial School for black students.

(See Continuation Sheet #!2)
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From 1953 to 1967, the Young People's Christian Association used the old
Hill School building for the purposes of Christian education and supervised
recreation for young people in the community. After 1967 the Trustees of the
Schaeffer Memorial Baptist Church leased the structure to the Christiansburg
Community Center, who in turn subleased the building to a delegate agency, the
New River Community Action, Inec. The building is still used as a community center.

The Schaeffer Memorial Baptist Church continues to function as a Baptist
meeting house, retzining all of its original fabriec, including chancel furniture,
pews, and baptistry. A memorial plaque and portrait of Captain Schaeffer hang on
either side of the chancel.
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DESCRIPTION
Hill School

The Hill School is located immediately to the west of the Schaeffer Memorial
Baptist Church and was built at the same time. It is a two-and-one-half-story,
cruciform-plan, gable-roof structure set on a low stone foundation,
structed in six-course-American-bond brickwork.

it is con-

Identical in appearance, the entrances found on the east and west elevations
each consist of an arched, transom~light double-paneled doorway flanked on both
sides by narrow arched hung-sash windows. The second floor of two bays consists
of multi-paned, hung-sash windows with borders of clear square lights. All the
lintels and sills found on the building are constructed of wood,

The north and south elevations contain four bays, with windows identical to
those found on the west and east elevations. Although the building is stylistically

in the Italianate mode, the windows suggest a Queen Anne Revival inspiration.

The interior of rhe school has been radically altered. The building ceased to
function as a school in 1953 and has since undergone extensive alterations.
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